

# THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

# **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL**

RFP NO. 793-2024

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE RECRUITMENT OF CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### PART A - BID SUBMISSION

Form A: Bid/Proposal Form B: Prices

#### **PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES**

B1.	Contract Title	1
B2.	Submission Deadline	1
B3.	Enquiries	1
B4.	Confidentiality	1
B5.	Addenda	2
B6.	Proposal Submission	2
B7.	Proposal (Section A)	3
B8.	Fees (Section B)	3
B9.	Experience of Proponent and Subconsultants (Section C)	4
B10.	Experience of Key Personnel Assigned to the Project (Section D)	4
B11.	Project Understanding and Methodology (Section E)	5
B12.	Project Schedule (Section F)	5
	Disclosure	6
B14.	Conflict of Interest and Good Faith	6
B15.	Qualification	7
B16.	Opening of Proposals and Release of Information	8
B17.	Irrevocable Offer	8
	Withdrawal of Offers	8
	Interviews	8
	Negotiations	8
	Evaluation of Proposals	9
B22.	Award of Contract	10
PART C	- GENERAL CONDITIONS	
		4
C0.	General Conditions	1
PART D	- SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS	
Gen	eral	
D1.	General Conditions	1
D2.	Consulting Contract Administrator	1
	Background	1
D4.	Scope of Services	1
D5.	Definitions	2
D6.	Accessible Customer Service Requirements	2
D7.	Unfair Labour Practices	3
D8.	Information Management	3
Subi	nissions	
	Authority to Carry on Business	5
D10.	Insurance	5
Sche	edule of Services	
	Commencement	6
	Supply Chain Disruption Schedule Delays	6
Mea	surement and Payment	
	Invoices	6
	Payment	7
	ute Resolution	
	Dispute Resolution	7
		•

### **PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES**

#### B1. CONTRACT TITLE

B1.1 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE RECRUITMENT OF CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

#### B2. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B2.1 The Submission Deadline is 12:00 noon Winnipeg time, November 13, 2024.
- B2.2 The Consulting Contract Administrator or the Manager of Purchasing may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B2.1.

#### B3. ENQUIRIES

- B3.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Consulting Contract Administrator identified in D2.
- B3.2 If the Proponent finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Request for Proposal, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Proponent shall promptly notify the Consulting Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B3.3 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Consulting Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the Request for Proposal will be provided by the Consulting Contract Administrator to all Proponents by issuing an addendum.
- B3.4 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Consulting Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the Request for Proposal will be provided by the Consulting Contract Administrator only to the Proponent who made the enquiry.
- B3.5 All correspondence or contact by Proponents with the City in respect of this RFP must be directly and only with the City's Consulting Contract Administrator. Failure to restrict correspondence and contact to the Consulting Contract Administrator may result in the rejection of the Proponents Proposal Submission.
- B3.6 The Proponent shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B3 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Consulting Contract Administrator in writing.
- B3.7 Any enquiries concerning submitting through MERX should be addressed to: MERX Customer Support Phone: 1-800-964-6379 Email: merx@merx.com

#### B4. CONFIDENTIALITY

- B4.1 Information provided to a Proponent by the City or acquired by a Proponent by way of further enquiries or through investigation is confidential. Such information shall not be used or disclosed in any way without the prior written authorization of the Consulting Contract Administrator. The use and disclosure of the Confidential Information shall not apply to information which:
  - (a) was known to the Proponent before receipt hereof; or
  - (b) becomes publicly known other than through the Proponent; or
  - (c) is disclosed pursuant to the requirements of a governmental authority or judicial order.

B4.2 The Proponent shall not make any statement of fact or opinion regarding any aspect of the Request for Proposals to the media or any member of the public without the prior written authorization of the Consulting Contract Administrator.

#### B5. ADDENDA

- B5.1 The Consulting Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission Deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Request for Proposal, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.
- B5.2 The Consulting Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
- B5.3 Addenda will be available on the MERX website at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B5.4 The Proponent is responsible for ensuring that they have received all addenda and is advised to check the MERX website for addenda regularly and shortly before the Submission Deadline, as may be amended by addendum.
- B5.5 The Proponent shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid/Proposal. Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may render a Proposal nonresponsive.
- B5.6 Notwithstanding B3, enquiries related to an Addendum may be directed to the Consulting Contract Administrator indicated in D2.

#### B6. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

- B6.1 The Proposal shall consist of the following components:
  - (a) Form A: Bid/Proposal (Section A) in accordance with B7; and
  - (b) Fees (Section B) in accordance with B8.
- B6.2 The Proposal should also consist of the following components:
  - (a) Experience of Proponent and Subconsultants (Section C) in accordance with B9;
  - (b) Experience of Key Personnel Assigned to the Project (Section D), in accordance with B10;
  - (c) Project Understanding and Methodology (Section E) in accordance with B11; and
  - (d) Project Schedule (Section F) in accordance with B12.
- B6.3 Further to B6.1 all components of the Proposal shall be fully completed or provided in the order indicated, and submitted by the Proponent no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely, to constitute a responsive Proposal.
- B6.4 Further to B6.2, all components of the Proposal should be fully completed or provided in the order indicated, and submitted by the Proponent no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely.
- B6.5 Proposal format, including number of pages, size of pages and, font, etc., will not be regulated, except that the Proposal should contain a table of contents, page numbering and should be in the Sections identified above. Proponents are encouraged to use their creativity to submit a Proposal which provides the requested information for evaluation and other information which illustrates the strength of their proposed solution.
- B6.6 The Proposal shall be submitted electronically through MERX at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B6.6.1 Proposals will **only** be accepted electronically through MERX.

- B6.7 Proponents are advised that inclusion of terms and conditions inconsistent with the Request for Proposal, will be evaluated in accordance with B21.1(a).
- B6.8 Any cost or expense incurred by the Proponent that is associated with the preparation of the Proposal shall be borne solely by the Proponent.

#### B7. PROPOSAL (SECTION A)

- B7.1 The Proponent shall complete Form A: Bid/Proposal, making all required entries.
- B7.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid/Proposal shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
  - (a) if the Proponent is a sole proprietor carrying on business in their own name, their name shall be inserted;
  - (b) if the Proponent is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted;
  - (c) if the Proponent is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
  - (d) if the Proponent is carrying on business under a name other than their own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B7.2.1 If a Proposal is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B7.2
- B7.3 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid/Proposal, the Proponent shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Proponent for purposes of the Proposal.
- B7.4 Paragraph 13 of Form A: Bid/Proposal shall be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
  - (a) if the Proponent is a sole proprietor carrying on business in their own name, it shall be signed by the Proponent;
  - (b) if the Proponent is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership;
  - (c) if the Proponent is a corporation, it shall be signed by their duly authorized officer or officers;
  - (d) if the Proponent is carrying on business under a name other than their own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name, or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.
- B7.4.1 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Bid/Proposal should be entered below such signatures.
- B7.5 If a Proposal is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Proponent" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Proponents in the Proposal and the Contract, when awarded, shall be both joint and several.

#### B8. FEES (SECTION B)

- B8.1 The Proposal shall include a Fixed Fee for all disciplines and/or phases identified in D4 Scope of Services.
- B8.2 Adjustments to Fees will only be considered based on increases to the Scope of Services.
- B8.2.1 The City will not consider an adjustment to the Fees based on changes in the Project budget.
- B8.3 Notwithstanding C1.1(b), Fees shall include costs for out of town travel, related meals and accommodations for the duration of the Project and shall not be considered an Allowable Disbursement.

- B8.4 The Fee Proposal shall also include an allowance for Allowable Disbursements as defined in C1.1(b).
- B8.5 Notwithstanding C11.1, Fees submitted shall not include the Goods and Services Tax (GST) or Manitoba Retail Sales Tax (MRST, also known as PST), which shall be extra where applicable.
- B8.6 Payments to Non-Resident Consultants are subject to Non-Resident Withholding Tax pursuant to the Income Tax Act (Canada).

#### **B9. EXPERIENCE OF PROPONENT AND SUBCONSULTANTS (SECTION C)**

- B9.1 Proposals should include the following:
  - (a) an explanation of the services offered, including how their unique analytics and research works, and what sets them apart;
  - (b) identify what tools and strategies will be used to identify and attract diverse candidates nationally;
    - (i) Firms with a national presence will be evaluated more favourably.
  - (c) details demonstrating the history and experience of the Proponent and Subconsultants in providing services on three (3) projects of similar complexity, scope and value, and in working with a publicly elected Recruitment Committee.
- B9.2 For each project listed in B9.1(a), the Proponent should submit:
  - (a) description of the project;
  - (b) role of the consultant;
  - (c) project's original contracted cost and final cost;
  - (d) schedule (anticipated Project schedule and actual project delivery schedule;
  - (e) project owner;
  - (f) reference information (two current names with telephone numbers and email addresses per project).
- B9.2.1 Where applicable, information should be separated into Proponent and Subconsultant project listings.
- B9.3 The Proposal should include general firm profile information, including years in business, average volume of work, number of employees and other pertinent information for the Proponent and all Subconsultants.

#### B10. EXPERIENCE OF KEY PERSONNEL ASSIGNED TO THE PROJECT (SECTION D)

- B10.1 Describe your approach to overall team formation and coordination of team members.
- B10.1.1 Include an organizational chart for the Project.
- B10.2 Identify the following Key Personnel assigned to the Project:
  - (a) Project Manager
- B10.3 Submit the experience and qualifications of the Key Personnel assigned to the Project for projects of similar complexity, scope and value, including the principals-in-charge, the Consultants Representative, managers of the key disciplines. Include educational background and degrees, professional recognition, job title, years of experience in current position, and years of experience with existing employer. Roles of each of the Key Personnel in the Project should be identified in the organizational chart referred to in B10.1.1.
- B10.3.1 Experience should include how Key Personnel lead discussions with members of a Recruitment Committee.

- B10.4 For each person identified, list at least two comparable projects in which they have played a primary role similar to that proposed for this Project. If a project selected for a key person is included in B9, provide only the project name and the role of the key person. For other projects provide the following:
  - (a) Description of project;
  - (b) Role of the person;
  - (c) Project Owner;
  - (d) Reference information (two current names with telephone numbers and email addresses per project).

#### B11. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND METHODOLOGY (SECTION E)

- B11.1 Describe your firm's project management approach and team organization during the performance of Services, so that the evaluation committee has a clear understanding of the methods the Proponent will use in the delivery of this Project.
- B11.2 Methodology should be presented in accordance with the Scope of Services identified in D4.
- B11.3 Describe the collaborative process/method to be used by the Key Personnel of the team in the various phases of the Project.
- B11.4 Proposals should describe the approach and timelines that will be taken in sourcing, screening, and presenting candidates, short-list preferred candidate(s), including specific assessment tools that will be administered in the final selection of a candidate. That should include:
  - (a) A review and recommendation of the projected new CAO salary range and relocation support required for the geographic area and labour market in Manitoba;
  - (b) The approach to be taken in sourcing diverse candidates nationally and locally;
  - (c) The research and analytic services available to the firm to identify potential candidates locally and nationally;
  - (d) The material to be presented to potential candidates;
  - (e) The material to be presented to the Recruitment Committee at different stages;
  - (f) The screening methods to be utilized to identify diversity amongst candidates;
  - (g) The sourcing methods that will be used to identify and locate diverse and qualified candidates nationally and locally; specifically the strategies employed to attract applicants who self-declare as one (1) or more of the four (4) protected employment equity groups including Women, Visible Minority, Indigenous, Persons with a Disability;
  - (h) The development of interview, presentation, and testing material/questions to be presented and approved by the Recruitment Committee;
  - (i) The types of background checks to be conducted on candidates prior to presentation to the Committee, prior to interviews, during interview, and if selected as a final preferred candidate. This also must include reference process and criminal record check;
  - (j) Proposed timelines to conduct the project work, including key milestones, process for regular updates, and formal meeting points suggested to ensure the project is on track;
  - (k) The approach to be taken to engage with identified Business Community Members to gather insights and expertise on what makes a good CAO and the material to be presented to the Selection Committee; and
  - (I) any other issue that conveys your team's understanding of the Project requirements.

#### B12. PROJECT SCHEDULE (SECTION F)

B12.1 Proponents should present a carefully considered Critical Path Method schedule using Microsoft Project or similar project management software, complete with resource assignments, durations (weekly timescale) and milestone dates or events. The schedule should address each requirement of the Scope of Services.

B12.2 The Proponent's schedule should include critical dates for review and approval processes by the City during tendering phases of the Project. Reasonable times should be allowed for completion of these processes.

#### B13. DISCLOSURE

- B13.1 Various Persons provided information or services with respect to this RFP. In the City's opinion, this relationship or association does not create a conflict of interest because of this full disclosure. Where applicable, additional material available as a result of contact with these Persons is listed below.
- B13.2 The Persons are:
  - (a) N/A

#### B14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND GOOD FAITH

- B14.1 Further to C3.2, Proponents, by responding to this RFP, declare that no Conflict of Interest currently exists, or is reasonably expected to exist in the future.
- B14.2 Conflict of Interest means any situation or circumstance where a Proponent or Key Personnel proposed for the Services has:
  - (a) other commitments;
  - (b) relationships;
  - (c) financial interests; or
  - (d) involvement in ongoing litigation;

that could or would be seen to:

- exercise an improper influence over the objective, unbiased and impartial exercise of the independent judgment of the City with respect to the evaluation of Proposals or award of the Contract; or
- (ii) compromise, impair or be incompatible with the effective performance of a Proponent's obligations under the Contract;
- (e) has contractual or other obligations to the City that could or would be seen to have been compromised or impaired as a result of their participation in the RFP process or the Project; or
- (f) has knowledge of confidential information (other than confidential information disclosed by the City in the normal course of the RFP process) of strategic and/or material relevance to the RFP process or to the Project that is not available to other Proponents and that could or would be seen to give that Proponent an unfair competitive advantage.
- B14.3 In connection with their Proposal, each entity identified in B14.2 shall:
  - (a) avoid any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest in relation to the procurement process and the Project;
  - (b) upon discovering any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest at any time during the RFP process, promptly disclose a detailed description of the Conflict of Interest to the City in a written statement to the Consulting Contract Administrator; and
  - (c) provide the City with the proposed means to avoid or mitigate, to the greatest extent practicable, any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest and shall submit any additional information to the City that the City considers necessary to properly assess the perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest.

- B14.4 Without limiting B14.3, the City may, in their sole discretion, waive any and all perceived, potential or actual Conflicts of Interest. The City's waiver may be based upon such terms and conditions as the City, in their sole discretion, requires to satisfy itself that the Conflict of Interest has been appropriately avoided or mitigated, including requiring the Proponent to put into place such policies, procedures, measures and other safeguards as may be required by and be acceptable to the City, in their sole discretion, to avoid or mitigate the impact of such Conflict of Interest.
- B14.5 Without limiting B14.3, and in addition to all contractual or other rights or rights at law or in equity or legislation that may be available to the City, the City may, in their sole discretion:
  - (a) disqualify a Proponent that fails to disclose a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest of the Proponent or any of their Key Personnel;
  - (b) require the removal or replacement of any Key Personnel proposed for the Services that has a perceived, actual or potential Conflict of Interest that the City, in their sole discretion, determines cannot be avoided or mitigated;
  - (c) disqualify a Proponent or Key Personnel proposed for the Services that fails to comply with any requirements prescribed by the City pursuant to B14.4 to avoid or mitigate a Conflict of Interest; and
  - (d) disqualify a Proponent if the Proponent, or one of their Key Personnel proposed for the Project, has a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest that, in the City's sole discretion, cannot be avoided or mitigated, or otherwise resolved.
- B14.6 The final determination of whether a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest exists shall be made by the City, in their sole discretion.

#### B15. QUALIFICATION

- B15.1 The Proponent shall:
  - (a) undertake to be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Proponent does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Proponent does carry on business; and
  - (b) be financially capable of carrying out the terms of the Contract;
  - (c) have all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to perform the Services in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract;
- B15.2 The Proponent and any proposed Subconsultant (for the portion of the Services proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
  - (a) be responsible and not be suspended, debarred or in default of any obligations to the City. A list of suspended or debarred individuals and companies is available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Purchasing Division website at <u>https://winnipeg.ca/finance/findata/matmgt/listing/debar.pdf</u>
- B15.3 The Proponent and/or any proposed Subconsultant (for the portion of the Services proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
  - (a) have successfully carried out services for the recruitment projects of similar complexity, scope and value; and to those required for this Project; and
  - (b) be fully capable of performing the Services required to be in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract;
  - (c) have a written workplace safety and health program, if required, pursuant to The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba); and
  - (d) have completed the Accessible Customer Service online training required by the Accessibility for Manitobans Act (AMA) (see B15.4 and D6).

- B15.4 Further to B15.3(d), the Proponent acknowledges they and all Subconsultants have obtained training required by the Accessibility for Manitobans Act (AMA) available at <u>Accessibility</u> <u>Training</u> for anyone that may have any interaction with the public on behalf of the City of Winnipeg.
- B15.5 The Proponent shall submit, within three (3) Business Days of a request by the Consulting Contract Administrator, further proof satisfactory to the Consulting Contract Administrator of the qualifications of the Proponent and of any proposed Subconsultant.
- B15.6 The Proponent shall provide, on the request of the Consulting Contract Administrator, full access to any of the Proponent's equipment and facilities to confirm, to the Consulting Contract Administrator's satisfaction, that the Proponent's equipment and facilities are adequate to perform the Services.

#### B16. OPENING OF PROPOSALS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

- B16.1 Proposals will not be opened publicly.
- B16.2 After award of Contract, the Contract amount and the name of the successful Proponent and their address will be available on the MERX website at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B16.3 The Proponent is advised any information contained in any Proposal Submission may be released if required by The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law or by City policy or procedures (which may include access by members of City Council).
- B16.3.1 To the extent permitted, the City shall treat as confidential information, those aspects of a Proposal Submission identified by the Proponent as such in accordance with and by reference to Part 2, Section 17 or Section 18 or Section 26 of The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), as amended.
- B16.4 Following the award of Contract, a Proponent will be provided with information related to the evaluation of their submission upon written request to the Consulting Contract Administrator.

#### B17. IRREVOCABLE OFFER

- B17.1 The Proposal(s) submitted by the Proponent shall be irrevocable for the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid/Proposal.
- B17.2 The acceptance by the City of any Proposal shall not release the Proposals of the other responsive Proponents and these Proponents shall be bound by their offers on such Services for the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid/Proposal.

#### B18. WITHDRAWAL OF OFFERS

B18.1 A Proponent may withdraw their Proposal without penalty prior to the Submission Deadline.

#### B19. INTERVIEWS

B19.1 The Consulting Contract Administrator may, in their sole discretion, interview Proponents during the evaluation process.

#### B20. NEGOTIATIONS

- B20.1 The City reserves the right to negotiate details of the Contract with any Proponent. Proponents are advised to present their best offer, not a starting point for negotiations in their Proposal Submission.
- B20.2 The City may negotiate with the Proponents submitting, in the City's opinion, the most advantageous Proposals. The City may enter into negotiations with one or more Proponents

without being obligated to offer the same opportunity to any other Proponents. Negotiations may be concurrent and will involve each Proponent individually. The City shall incur no liability to any Proponent as a result of such negotiations.

B20.3 If, in the course of negotiations pursuant to B20.2, the Proponent amends or modifies a Proposal after the Submission Deadline, the City may consider the amended Proposal as an alternative to the Proposal already submitted without releasing the Proponent from the Proposal as originally submitted.

#### B21. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

B21.1 Award of the Contract shall be based on the following evaluation criteria:

(a)	compliance by the Proponent with the requirements of the Request for Pro acceptable deviation therefrom:	oposal or (pass/fail)
(b)	qualifications of the Proponent and the Subconsultants, if any, pursuant to	B15: (pass/fail)
(c)	Fees; (Section B)	10%
(d)	Experience of Proponent and Subconsultant; (Section C)	30%
(e)	Experience of Key Personnel Assigned to the Project; (Section D)	30%
(f)	Project Understanding and Methodology (Section E)	20%
(g)	Project Schedule. (Section F)	10%

- B21.2 Further to B21.1(a), the Award Authority may reject a Proposal as being non-responsive if the Proposal Submission is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The Award Authority may reject all or any part of any Proposal, or waive technical requirements or minor informalities or irregularities if the interests of the City so require.
- B21.3 Further to B21.1(b), the Award Authority shall reject any Proposal submitted by a Proponent who does not demonstrate, in their Proposal or in other information required to be submitted, that it is qualified.
- B21.4 If, in the sole opinion of the City, a Proposal does not achieve a pass rating for B21.1(a) and B21.1(b), the Proposal will be determined to be non-responsive and will not be further evaluated.
- B21.5 Further to B21.1(c), Fees will be evaluated based on Fees submitted in accordance with B8.
- B21.6 Further to B21.1(c), the Award Authority may reject a Proposal as being non-responsive if it exceeds the funds available as shown in D4.3.
- B21.7 Further to B21.1(d), Experience of Proponent and Subconsultants will be evaluated considering the experience of the organization on projects of similar size and complexity as well as other information requested, in accordance with B9.
- B21.8 Further to B21.1(e), Experience of Key Personnel Assigned to the Project will be evaluated considering the experience and qualifications of the Key Personnel and Subconsultant personnel on Projects of comparable size and complexity, in accordance with B10.
- B21.9 Further to B21.1(f), Project Understanding and Methodology will be evaluated considering your firm's understanding of the City's Project, project management approach and team organization, in accordance with B11.
- B21.10 Further to B21.1(g), Project Schedule will be evaluated considering the Proponent's ability to comply with the requirements of the Project, in accordance with B12.
- B21.11 Notwithstanding B21.1(d) to B21.1(g), where Proponents fail to provide a response to B6.2(a) to B6.2(d), the score of zero may be assigned to the incomplete part of the response.

- B21.12 Proposals will be evaluated considering the information in the Proposal Submission and any interviews held in accordance with B19.
- B21.13 Where references are requested, the reference checks to confirm information provided may not be restricted to only those submitted by the Proponent, and may include organizations representing Persons, known to have done business with the Proponent.

#### B22. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- B22.1 The City will give notice of the award of the Contract, or will give notice that no award will be made.
- B22.2 The City will have no obligation to award a Contract to a Proponent, even though one or all of the Proponents are determined to be qualified, and the Proposals are determined to be responsive.
- B22.2.1 Without limiting the generality of B22.2, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract where:
  - (a) the prices exceed the available City funds for the Services;
  - (b) the prices are materially in excess of the prices received for similar services in the past;
  - (c) the prices are materially in excess of the City's cost to perform the Services, or a significant portion thereof, with their own forces;
  - (d) only one Proposal is received; or
  - (e) in the judgment of the Award Authority, the interests of the City would best be served by not awarding a Contract.
- B22.3 Where an award of Contract is made by the City, the award shall be made to the qualified Proponent submitting the most advantageous offer.
- B22.4 The City may, at their discretion, award the Contract in phases.
- B22.5 Further to B22.4 the City reserves the right to negotiate and award future phases to the successful Proponent.
- B22.6 Further to Paragraph 7 of Form A: Bid/Proposal and C4, the City may issue an award letter to the successful Proponent in lieu of execution of Contract Documents
- B22.6.1 The Contract documents as defined in C1.1(u) in their entirety shall be deemed to be incorporated in and to form a part of the award letter notwithstanding that they are not necessarily attached to or accompany said award letter.
- B22.7 The form of Contract with the City of Winnipeg will be based on the Contract as defined in C1.1(v).
- B22.8 Following the award of Contract, a Proponent will be provided with information related to the evaluation of their Proposal upon written request to the Consulting Contract Administrator.
- B22.9 If, after the award of Contract, the Project is cancelled, the City reserves the right to terminate the Contract. The Proponent will be paid for all Services rendered up to time of termination.

# **PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS**

#### C0. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- C0.1 The *General Conditions for Consultant Services* (Revision 2022-09-02) are applicable to the Services of the Contract.
- C0.1.1 The General Conditions for Consultant Services are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Purchasing Division website at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/gen\_cond.stm</u>.
- C0.2 A reference in the Request for Proposal to a section, clause or subclause with the prefix "**C**" designates a section, clause or subclause in the *General Conditions for Consultant Services*.

## **PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS**

#### GENERAL

#### D1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

D1.1 In addition to the *General Conditions for Consultant Services*, these Supplemental Conditions are applicable to the Services of the Contract.

#### D2. CONSULTING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

D2.1 The Consulting Contract Administrator is:

Shauna Baluk Manager, Corporate HR and Talent Acquisition Services Telephone No. 204-390-1680 Email Address: sbaluk@winnipeg.ca

D2.2 At the pre-commencement meeting, the Consulting Contract Administrator will identify additional personnel representing the Consulting Contract Administrator and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Services.

#### D3. BACKGROUND

D3.1 The administrative structure for the City of Winnipeg is a Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) who is the head of the public service and provides overall leadership to all City departments.

#### D4. SCOPE OF SERVICES

- D4.1 The Services required under this Contract shall consist of sourcing candidates for the position of Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Winnipeg in accordance with the following:
  - (a) Assisting in updating the Chief Administrative Officer job description in consultation with the Recruitment Committee;
  - (b) The creation of a position profile that highlights the requirement of the position and highlights of the City of Winnipeg as a career destination;
  - (c) Cross jurisdictional scan with other municipal bodies for salary purposes;
  - (d) Demonstration of the research tools and analytics available to the Firm to identify where diverse and qualified candidates are likely to be found;
  - (e) Demonstration of past success sourcing and presenting diverse and qualified candidates, such those that are Women, Visible Minority, Indigenous, and or Persons with Disability;
  - (f) Creation of screening criteria and interview selection criteria;
  - (g) Conducting national search, possibly beyond if required;
  - (h) Preparing any advertisements and promotional material to be used through search process in consultation with the Recruitment Committee;
  - Engage with the Business Community Members of a large or comparable size organization to the City of Winnipeg with multi, diverse lines of business to gather insights and expertise on what makes a good Chief Administrative Officer and provide the information to the Selection Committee. A list of Business Community Members will be provided;
  - (j) Receiving and sourcing applicants. Maintain a list of all applicants, and prepare a short list of qualified applicants for presentation to the Committee;
  - (k) Conduct initial pre-screen interviews and outline process used (phone, video or in-person);
  - (I) Bring forward qualified, screened and pre-reference-checked candidates;

- (m) Creating the interview material which includes; the interview guide, interview questions, selection criteria. selection rating tools, assessment tools, and psycho-metric testing to be used on candidates together with the Recruitment Committee;
- (n) Coordinating interviews and providing confidential meeting space. Interviews will be led by the Recruitment Firm and Recruitment Committee;
- (o) Conducting additional background checks and final reference checks on preferred candidate as required;
- (p) Supporting the Recruitment Committee and HR Services at the City of Winnipeg with new hire salary negotiations and recommending reasonable relocation financial support levels; and
- (q) Providing progress updates to the Recruitment Committee as required. Video conferencing may be used for updates. Some travel may be required.
- D4.2 The following shall apply to the Services:
  - (a) Should this project include a public engagement aspect, it will be required to meet: Public Engagement Guidelines

https://winnipeg.ca/PublicEngagement/pdfs/PublicEngagementRequirements.pdf

D4.3 The funds available for this Contract are \$85,000.00.

#### D5. DEFINITIONS

- D5.1 When used in this Request for Proposal:
  - (a) "Supply Chain Disruption" means an inability by the Contractor to obtain goods or services from third parties necessary to perform the Work of the Contract within the schedule specified therein, despite the Contractor making all reasonable commercial efforts to procure same. Contractors are advised that increased costs do not, in and of themselves, amount to a Supply Chain Disruption.

#### D6. ACCESSIBLE CUSTOMER SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

- D6.1 The Accessibility for Manitobans Act (AMA) imposes obligations on The City of Winnipeg to provide accessible customer service to all persons in accordance with the Customer Service Standard Regulation ("CSSR") to ensure inclusive access and participation for all people who live, work or visit Winnipeg regardless of their abilities.
- D6.1.1 The Consultant agrees to comply with the accessible customer service obligations under the CSSR and further agrees that when providing the Goods or Services or otherwise acting on the City of Winnipeg's behalf, shall comply with all obligations under the AMA applicable to public sector bodies.
- D6.1.2 The accessible customer service obligations include, but are not limited to:
  - (a) providing barrier-free access to goods and services;
  - (b) providing reasonable accommodations;
  - (c) reasonably accommodating assistive devices, support persons, and support animals;
  - (d) providing accessibility features e.g. ramps, wide aisles, accessible washrooms, power doors and elevators;
  - (e) inform the public when accessibility features are not available;
  - (f) providing a mechanism or process for receiving and responding to public feedback on the accessibility of all goods and services; and
  - (g) providing adequate training of staff and documentation of same.

#### D7. UNFAIR LABOUR PRACTICES

- D7.1 Further to C3.2, the Consultant declares that in bidding for the Work and in entering into this Contract, the Consultant and any proposed Subconsultant(s) conduct their respective business in accordance with established international codes embodied in United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR) <u>https://www.un.org/en/about-us/universal-declaration-of-human-rights</u> International Labour Organization (ILO) <u>https://www.ilo.org/global/lang--en/index.htm</u> conventions as ratified by Canada.
- D7.2 The City of Winnipeg is committed and requires its Consultants and their Subconsultants, to be committed to upholding and promoting international human and labour rights, including fundamental principles and rights at work covered by ILO eight (8) fundamental conventions and the United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights which includes child and forced labour.
- D7.3 Upon request from the Consulting Contract Administrator, the Consultant shall provide disclosure of the sources (by company and country) of the raw materials used in the Work and a description of the manufacturing environment or processes (labour unions, minimum wages, safety, etc.).
- D7.4 Failure to provide the evidence required under D7.3, may be determined to be an event of default in accordance with C14.
- D7.5 In the event that the City, in its sole discretion, determines the Consultant to have violated the requirements of this section, it will be considered a fundamental breach of the Contract and the Consultant shall pay to the City a sum specified by the Consulting Contract Administrator in writing ("Unfair Labour Practice Penalty"). Such a violation shall also be considered an Event of Default, and shall entitle the City to pursue all other remedies it is entitled to in connection with same pursuant to the Contract.
- D7.5.1 The Unfair Labour Practice Penalty shall be such a sum as determined appropriate by the City, having due regard to the gravity of the Consultant's violation of the above requirements, any cost of obtaining replacement goods/ services or rectification of the breach, and the impact upon the City's reputation in the eyes of the public as a result of same.
- D7.5.2 The Consultant shall pay the Unfair Labour Practice Penalty to the City within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receiving a demand for same in accordance with D7.5. The City may also hold back the amount of the Unfair Labour Practice Penalty from payment for any amount it owes the Consultant.
  - (a) The obligations and rights conveyed by this clause survive the expiry or termination of this Contract, and may be exercised by the City following the performance of the Work, should the City determine, that a violation by the Consultant of the above clauses has occurred following same. In no instance shall the Unfair Labour Practice Penalty exceed the total of twice the Contract value.

#### D8. INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

- D8.1 The following provisions are in addition to any preceding obligations of confidentiality contained in this document. All requirements apply to the Contractor. Further, where the Services &/or Work is being provided by a third party (either by a Subcontractor or authorized third party reseller), the Contractor represents and warrants that it will ensure that the third party meets all of the relevant requirements of the Information Management clauses and will assume responsibility and liability for the third party's compliance or non-compliance.
- D8.2 The Contractor acknowledges that The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act ("FIPPA") and Personal Health Information Act ("PHIA") imposes obligations on the City to collect, store, use, disclose, and destroy "personal information", as that term is defined in FIPPA, ("Personal Information") in the strictest of confidence and in accordance with FIPPA and PHIA.

- D8.3 The Contractor:
  - (a) Shall be deemed to be an Information Manager as that term is defined in FIPPA;
  - (b) Shall be responsible to ensure that all Personal Information is collected, stored, used, disclosed or destroyed only and strictly in accordance with the Contract; and
  - (c) Shall, in respect of all Personal Information, implement and comply with the security requirements, controls, policies, and standards set out in the Contract and the Specifications.
- D8.4 While this Contract is in effect, and at all times thereafter, the Contractor shall treat as confidential any and all Confidential Information which it acquires or that is collected, stored, used, disclosed or destroyed, or to which it is given access, or which in any other way it comes into possession or knowledge of, during the course of the performance of the Contract. For the purposes of this Contract, Personal Information shall be considered to be Confidential Information.
- D8.5 The Contractor shall comply with section 44.1 of FIPPA, and more generally, any collection, storage, use, disclosure or destruction of Personal Information by the Contractor shall be in compliance with FIPPA and PHIA.
- D8.6 Further to C21 of the General Conditions, all Confidential Information is and shall remain the property of the City.
- D8.7 The Contractor shall not disclose or appropriate to their own use, or to the use of any third party, all or any part of the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator. The Contractor shall not at any time make any public announcement, press release, or statement of fact or opinion regarding the Bid Opportunity, the Contract, the Work, the City, or the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator.
- D8.8 While this Contract is in effect and at all times thereafter the Contractor shall: (a) only collect, store, use, disclose or destroy the Confidential Information for the purposes expressly permitted by the City, and only to the extent necessary to perform its obligations under this Contract:
  - ensure that access to the Confidential Information is only provided or permitted a "need to know" basis, and that access, when given, shall be the minimum amount necessary to accomplish the task;
  - (b) not disclose or permit the disclosure of the Confidential Information or any copies thereof, whether in whole or in part, in any form or medium, to any third party, including Subcontractors or agents, without the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator;
  - (c) not reproduce any Confidential Information, in whole or in part, in any form or medium, without the express prior written consent of the Contract Administrator; and
  - (d) inform its Subcontractors of the obligations imposed upon it under this Contract and FIPPA, and shall take whatever steps are necessary to ensure that all of its Subcontractors comply with those obligations, including (but not limited to) binding said Subcontractors to terms no less strict than those herein through written confidentiality agreements.
- D8.9 The Contractor shall put into place reasonable security arrangements, including administrative, technical, and physical safeguards that ensure the confidentiality and security of the Confidential Information. The standard of such security arrangements shall be the greater of:
  - (a) the standards the Contractor has in place to protect its own confidential information; or
  - (b) the standards imposed on the Contractor by the Contract Administrator.
- D8.10 Upon becoming aware of any unauthorized use or handling of the Confidential Information (a "Confidentiality Breach"), the Contractor shall immediately notify the Contract Administrator in writing, take all reasonable steps to prevent the recurrence of any such Confidentiality Breach, and notify the Contract Administrator of said steps in writing.

- D8.11 Upon receiving a subpoena or other validly issued administrative or judicial order seeking Confidential Information, the Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with prompt notice thereof, deliver a copy of its proposed response to the Contract Administrator, and thereafter be entitled to comply with the demand to the extent permitted or required by law (unless the demand has been time-limited, quashed, or extended). The Contractor shall cooperate with the Contract Administrator in the defense of the demand, if so requested by the Contract Administrator.
- D8.12 The Contractor shall, and shall ensure its Subcontractors, comply with all directives issued by the Contract Administrator with respect to safeguarding or otherwise ensuring the confidentiality of the Confidential Information, and shall cooperate with the Contract Administrator so that the Contract Administrator can verify that the Contractor has complied, and is complying, with its obligations hereunder.

#### SUBMISSIONS

#### D9. AUTHORITY TO CARRY ON BUSINESS

D9.1 The Consultant shall be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Consultant does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Consultant does carry on business, throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Consulting Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

#### D10. INSURANCE

- D10.1 The Consultant shall procure and maintain, at their own expense and cost, insurance policies with limits no less than those shown below.
- D10.2 As a minimum, the Consultant shall, without limiting their obligations or liabilities under any other contract with the City, procure and maintain, at their own expense and cost, the following insurance policies:
  - (a) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance including:
    - (i) an amount not less than \$250,000 . per claim and \$500,000 in the aggregate.
- D10.2.1 The Consultant's Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance shall remain in force for the duration of the Project and for twelve (12) months after Total Performance.
- D10.3 The policies required in D10.2(a) shall provide that the City is named as an Additional Insured thereunder and that said policies are primary without any right of contribution from any insurance otherwise maintained by the City.
- D10.4 The Consultant shall require each of their Subconsultants hired for services as outlined in the Scope of Services to provide comparable insurance to that set forth under D10.2(a).
- D10.5 The Consultant shall provide the Consulting Contract Administrator with a certificate(s) of insurance in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the commencement of any Services, but in no event later than the date specified in C4.4(a) for the return of the executed Contract. Such certificates shall state the exact description of the Services and provide for written notice in accordance with D10.8.
- D10.6 The Consultant may take out such additional insurance as it may consider necessary and desirable. All such additional insurance shall be at no expense to the City.
- D10.7 All insurance, which the Consultant is required to obtain with respect to this Contract, shall be with insurance companies registered in and licensed to underwrite such insurance in the Province of Manitoba.

D10.8 The Consultant shall not cancel, materially alter, or cause any policy to lapse without providing at least thirty (30) Calendar Days prior written notice to the City.

#### SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

#### D11. COMMENCEMENT

- D11.1 The Consultant shall not commence any Services until it is in receipt of a notice of award from the City authorizing the commencement of the Services.
- D11.2 The Consultant shall not commence any Services until:
  - (a) the Consulting Contract Administrator has confirmed receipt and approval of:
    - (i) evidence of authority to carry on business specified in D9; and
    - (ii) evidence of the insurance specified in D10.
  - (b) the Consultant has attended a meeting with the Consulting Contract Administrator, or the Consulting Contract Administrator has waived the requirement for a meeting;
  - (c) The direct deposit application specified in D14.1

#### D12. SUPPLY CHAIN DISRUPTION SCHEDULE DELAYS

- D12.1 The City acknowledges that the schedule for this Contract may be impacted by Supply Chain Disruption. Commencement and progress of the Services shall be performed by the Consultant with due consideration to delivery requirements and schedule identified in the Contract, in close consultation with the Consulting Contract Administrator.
- D12.2 If the Consultant is delayed in the performance of the Services by reason of the Supply Chain Disruption, the Services schedule may be adjusted by a period of time equal to the time lost due to such delay and costs related to such delay will be determined as identified herein.
- D12.3 A minimum of seven (7) Calendar Days prior to the commencement of Services, the Consultant shall declare whether a Supply Chain Disruption will affect the start date. The Consultant shall provide sufficient evidence that the delay is directly related to a Supply Chain Disruption, including but not limited to evidence related to availability of staff, ordering of Material or Goods, production and/or manufacturing schedules or availability of staff as appropriate.
- D12.4 For any delay related to Supply Chain Disruption and identified after Services have commenced, the Consultant shall within seven (7) Calendar Days of becoming aware of the anticipated delay declare the additional delay and shall provide sufficient evidence as indicated in D12.3. Failure to provide this notice will result in no additional time delays being considered by the City.
- D12.5 The Services schedule, including the durations identified in the Contract, will be adjusted to reflect delays accepted by the Consulting Contract Administrator.
- D12.6 Any time or cost implications as a result of Supply Chain Disruption and in accordance with the above, as confirmed by the Consulting Contract Administrator, shall be documented in accordance with C8.

#### MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

#### D13. INVOICES

D13.1 Further to C11, the Consultant shall submit an invoice for each portion of Work performed. to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance - Accounts Payable 4th Floor, Administration Building, 510 Main Street Winnipeg MB R3B 1B9 Facsimile No.: 204-949-0864 Send Invoices to <u>CityWpgAP-INVOICES@winnipeg.ca</u> Send Invoice Inquiries to <u>CityWpgAP-INQUIRIES@winnipeg.ca</u>

- D13.2 Invoices must clearly indicate, as a minimum:
  - (a) the City's purchase order number;
  - (b) date of delivery;
  - (c) type and quantity of work performed;
  - (d) the amount payable with GST and MRST shown as separate amounts; and
  - (e) the Consultant's GST registration number.
- D13.3 The City will bear no responsibility for delays in approval of invoices which are improperly submitted.

#### D14. PAYMENT

D14.1 Further to C11.14, the City shall make payments to the Consultant by direct deposit to the Consultant's banking institution, and by no other means. Payments will not be made until the Consultant has made satisfactory direct deposit arrangements with the City. Direct deposit application forms are at <a href="https://winnipeg.ca/finance/files/Direct\_Deposit\_Form.pdf">https://winnipeg.ca/finance/files/Direct\_Deposit\_Form.pdf</a>.

#### DISPUTE RESOLUTION

#### D15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- D15.1 If the Consultant disagrees with any opinion, determination, or decision of the Consulting Contract Administrator, the Consultant shall act in accordance with the Consulting Contract Administrator's opinion, determination, or decision unless and until same is modified by the process followed by the parties pursuant to D15.
- D15.2 The entire text of C17.4 is deleted, and amended to read: "Intentionally Deleted"
- D15.3 The entire text of C17.5 is deleted, and amended to read:
  - (a) If Legal Services has determined that the Disputed Matter may proceed in the Appeal Process, the Consultant must, within ten (10) Business Days of the date of the Legal Services Response Letter, submit their written Appeal Form, in the manner and format set out on the City's Purchasing Website, to the Chief Administrative Officer, and to the Consulting Contract Administrator. The Consultant may not raise any other disputes other than the Disputed Matter in their Appeal Form.
- D15.4 Further to C17, prior to the Consulting Contract Administrator's issuance of a Final Determination, the following informal dispute resolution process shall be followed where the Consultant disagrees with any opinion, determination, or decision of the Consulting Contract Administrator ("Dispute"):
  - (a) In the event of a Dispute, attempts shall be made by the Consulting Contract Administrator and the Consultant's equivalent representative to resolve Disputes within the normal course of project dealings between the Consulting Contract Administrator and the Consultant's equivalent representative.
  - (b) Disputes which in the reasonable opinion of the Consulting Contract Administrator or the Consultant's equivalent representative cannot be resolved within the normal course of project dealings as described above shall be referred to a without prejudice escalating negotiation process consisting of, at a minimum, the position levels as shown below and the equivalent Consultant representative levels:
  - (i) The Consulting Contract Administrator;

- (ii) Supervisory level between the Consulting Contract Administrator and applicable Department Head;
- (iii) Department Head.
- D15.4.1 Names and positions of Consultant representatives equivalent to the above City position levels shall be determined by the Consultant and communicated to the City at the precommencement or kick off meeting.
- D15.4.2 As these negotiations are not an adjudicative hearing, neither party may have legal counsel present during the negotiations.
- D15.4.3 Both the City and the Consultant agree to make all reasonable efforts to conduct the above escalating negotiation process within twenty (20) Business Days, unless both parties agree, in writing, to extend that period of time.
- D15.4.4 If the Dispute is not resolved to the City and Consultant's mutual satisfaction after discussions have occurred at the final escalated level as described above, or the time period set out in D15.4.3, as extended if applicable, has elapsed, the Consulting Contract Administrator will issue a Final Determination as defined in C1.1(dd), at which point the parties will be governed by the Dispute Resolution process set out in C17.